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Statement by the National Authority (NA) Regarding Common Inquiries by Potential Beneficiaries Relating to the Second Call for Proposals Under the IPA CBC Programme Bulgaria-Turkey
1-)What should be considered while preparing the budgets for the projects?
While preparing the project budgets some costs might be unpredictable. Financing of these costs can lead to problems in implementation phase. The costs that should not be overlooked during the preparation phase are listed below:
· Visa fees and the number of visits to Bulgaria should be added to the budget according to the visits that will be made to Bulgaria.

· The cost of translation of the tender documents may be included to the budget, because of tendering process shall be carried out in English.

· Green insurance costs should be included in the budget for the vehicles which will travel to Bulgaria.
· Costs of the letter of invitation to Turkish partners should be included in the budget of the Bulgarian partners. 

Fees that will be paid to the project staff should be calculated as gross amount and should include taxes and social security insurance premiums.  
On the other hand, if a tender procurement procedure is foreseen in the project, no payment should be allocated during the first implementation period in the procurement plan. Since usually the first months pass with office set-up, preparation of tender document etc. there might be no expenditure.
Additionally, payments from the Programme budget are made as 20% advance payment and then the requested amount according to the spent and verified amounts. Therefore sending the EU and national contributions may take time. There must be some amount in the budget of the institutions to finance the project until the EU funds are transferred and this amount will be reimbursed when the next payment from the management authority will be made.
2-)In the second call for proposals, should the supporting documents that are to be submitted along with the project application package be approved by the sworn translator removed?

As stated in the guidelines for applicant, translation of documents with applicant institution’s signature and “true as original” stamps is sufficient.

3-)According to the list of supporting documents , the documents related to the establishment of the  institution  must be submitted . What should the Institution do if it was established many years ago (such as municipalities) and if it cannot reach that document?
An official letter containing the required information from related authorities (Ministry, governorship, etc.) can be submitted.
4-) All application documents must be submitted in A4 paper. However, construction-related documents such as architectural drawings are on tracing paper and cannot be reduced to A4 paper size. What can be done?

The documents that cannot be reduced to A4 paper size must be submitted as folded in A4 paper size.

5-) Why are site photos and deeds are required as supporting documents in bio-diversity projects ?

Project proposals must be understandable for the non-technical assessors. For a sounder project evaluation, all supporting documents must be self-explanatory. Therefore the evaluators must know the ownership status of the land which is the site of the project implementation. For example, research cannot be done in private-property land. Cadastre documents must be provided for forest areas. 
6-)How to determine to the monthly salary of the project staff during the project budget preparation? Is there a limit for salary?

There is no limit about salaries. However according to national legislation, full-time staff salaries cannot be lower than the minimum wages. On the other hand, total amount for human resources BL cannot exceed 25% of the total budget. It must be considered during the project budget preparation phase. Personnel costs should be determined in a realistic way and should be calculated as gross amount. The salaries should not exceed the amount of market wages.
7-)While submitting a project proposal, should the certificate of authorization be taken from the institution’s legal representative?

Though projects must be submitted on behalf of the authority of the institutions, the authorized staff of the institutions should be informed about the project and give permission for the application of the project. The approval letter from the highest authority must be attached to the supporting documents.
8-) Is it possible for the personnel/partners to take part in the projects under the second call for proposals that work in the projects under the first call for proposals?
A person can work maximum in two projects that are implemented under the same programme at the same time. However, except for accountants, a full-time person working on the project cannot work in another project.
Regardless of how many projects a partner has under the first call, a partner can participate maximum in five projects under the second call and it can be the lead beneficiary only in one of them.
9-) Could there be a partnership with an institution that is out of the Programme area?

The eligible programme area includes districts of Burgas, Yambol and Haskovo on the Bulgarian side and the provinces of Edirne and Kırklareli on the Turkish side. An institution operating outside this area is not eligible as a partner under the Programme.
10-) Among the supporting documents, should electrical, statics and mechanical projects be submitted along with the architectural projects?
 For proposals including works component, all preparations must be done and construction should be able to start immediately. In this respect, all implementation projects should be prepared and approved by related authorities, all construction permits received and the site concerned should have no problem regarding property.
11-)  What unit price  must be  taken  into account in the bills of quantity? 

Official unit prices or market prices.

12-) If the prices of bill of quantity increase before the implementation phase what should be done?

In the budget, unit prices regarding bill of quantities can be calculated as slightly increased, to be on the safe side. 

13-) To whom  should the invoices regarding the costs related to the preparation of the project be addressed? 
The invoices should be addressed to the potential beneficiary institution.
15-) What should be considered about the expenditures that are related to project preparation?
If the project is selected, these expenditures shall be eligible. However expenditures must be made in line with the Prag and Programme rules.

The following topics have great importance in the process of submitting projects!!
1.English speaking staff should be included in the project team.
2.It is important that the project team take part in the project preparation.

3.The deadline for submission of proposals is 16 January 2012, 5:30 p.m. local time. This situation also applies to the applications made by post.
4.Submitting the applications by Bulgarian partners might be more appropriate because deadline is the same for post and hand delivery.

5. Budget items that must be included as specified in article 1 of this document must be paid attention.

6. Staff salaries must be calculated as gross amount including social security and taxes. 
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